
 

 

                                

Page 1 

 

 

AGENDA                
 
 
Meeting: WILTSHIRE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 

Place: The Corn Exchange, Market Place, Devizes, SN10 1HS 

Date: Thursday 16 January 2020 

Time: 10.00 am 

 

 
Please direct any enquiries on this Agenda to Kevin Fielding, of Democratic Services, 

County Hall, Bythesea Road, Trowbridge, direct line 01249 706612 EXT 21612 or email 
kevin.fielding@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
 

 
Membership: 
 

Cllr Junab Ali - Swindon Borough Council  
Cllr Abdul Amin - Swindon Borough Council  
Maime Beasant – Co-opted Independent member  
Cllr Alan Bishop - Swindon Borough Council  
Cllr Richard Britton - Wiltshire Council  
Cllr Ross Henning - Wiltshire Council  
Cllr Peter Hutton - Wiltshire Council  
Cllr Vinay Manro – Swindon Borough Council  
Cllr Nick Murry - Wiltshire Council  
Anna Richardson – Co-opted Independent member  
Cllr Tom Rounds – Wiltshire Council  
Cllr Jonathon Seed – Wiltshire Council  
Cllr John Smale - Wiltshire Council  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

                                

Page 2 

 

 
 

 
Substitutes: 
 
Cllr Peter Evans 
Cllr Sue Evans 
Cllr Tony Trotman 
Cllr Sarah Gibson 
Cllr Ruth Hopkinson 
Cllr Gordon King 
Cllr Jim Lynch 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RECORDING AND BROADCASTING NOTIFICATION 
 

Wiltshire Council may record this meeting for live and/or subsequent broadcast on the 
Council’s website at http://www.wiltshire.public-i.tv.  At the start of the meeting, the 

Chairman will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being recorded. The images and 
sound recordings may also be used for training purposes within the Council. 

 
By entering the meeting room you are consenting to being recorded and to the use of 

those images and recordings for broadcasting and/or training purposes. 
 

The meeting may also be recorded by the press or members of the public. 
 

Any person or organisation choosing to film, record or broadcast any meeting of the 
Council, its Cabinet or committees is responsible for any claims or other liability 

resulting from them so doing and by choosing to film, record or broadcast proceedings 
they accept that they are required to indemnify the Council, its members and officers in 

relation to any such claims or liabilities. 
 

Details of the Council’s Guidance on the Recording and Webcasting of Meetings is 
available on the Council’s website along with this agenda and available on request. 

If you have any queries please contact Democratic Services using the contact details 
above. 

 
 

http://www.wiltshire.public-i.tv/


 

 
                                

Page 3 

 

 

AGENDA 

 

 Part I 

 Items to be considered when the meeting is open to the public 
 

1   Apologies for Absence  
 

2   Declarations of interest  

 To receive any declarations of disclosable interests or dispensations granted by 
the Standards Committee. 
 

3   Chairman's Announcements  
 

4   Public Participation  

 The Panel welcomes contributions from members of the public. 
 
Statements 
 
If you wish to make a statement at this meeting on any item on this agenda, 
please register to do so at least 10 minutes prior to the meeting. Speakers are 
permitted to speak for up to 3 minutes on any agenda item. Please contact the 
officer named on the first page of the agenda for any further clarification. 
 
Questions 
 
Members of the public are able to ask questions in relation to the responsibilities 
and functions of the Panel at each meeting. Those wishing to ask questions are 
required to give notice of any such questions in writing to the Head of 
Democratic Services at Wiltshire Council no later than 5.00pm on Friday 10 
January 2020. Please contact the officer named on the first page of the agenda 
for further advice. Questions may be asked without notice if the Chairman 
decides that the matter is urgent. 
 

5   PCC Budget 2020/21 and MTFS  

 Clive Barker to present the PCC’s Draft Budget Settlement for 2020/21, 
including the MediumTerm Financial Strategy. 
 
To include initial statement on proposals for the policing element of the Council 
Tax precept for 2020-21. 



 

 
                                

Page 4 

 

6   Forward Work Plan  

 To note the forward work plan. 
 

7   Future meeting dates  

 To note the future meeting dates below: 
 

 Thursday 6 February – County Hall, Trowbridge 

 Thursday 19 March – Monkton Park, Chippenham 

 Thursday 4 June – City Hall, Salisbury 

 Thursday 3 September – Corn Exchange, Devizes 

 Thursday 10 December – Swindon Borough Council Offices 
 

 Part II 

 Item(s) during whose consideration it is recommended that the public should be 
excluded because of the likelihood that exempt information would be disclosed 

 

None 

  

  

 
 



  

Page 1 of 6 

 
 
Agenda Item 5 

Meeting Police and Crime Panel 

Date 16th January 2019 

Report Title Draft Budget Settlement 

Report 
presented 
by 

Angus Macpherson, Police and Crime Commissioner 

Author Clive Barker, Chief Finance Officer 

 
1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT  

 
1.1 This paper provides the panel with information on the draft budget and precept being 

considered. 
 
2.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
2.1 This paper is written with more uncertainty than the normal draft budget paper.  With the 

general election occurring in December 2019 we have not received a provisional grant 
settlement from the government nor any indication on precept capping rules.  This means 
rather than definitive options I have had to prepare scenarios reflecting the range of 
budgetary possibilities.  It is not clear whether the funds I will have available will allow me to 
invest in policing or require me to make savings. 

 
2.2 The MTFS forecasts the estimated financial position over the next 4 years and the impact 

this has on my ability to commission services. With the lack of funding certainty and the 
multiple scenarios being considered it means financial planning beyond 2020-21 is more 
uncertain than usual.  I acknowledge that decisions I make today will impact my finances over 
the medium and long term.   

 
3.0 CENTRAL GRANT 
 
3.1 On the 4 September 2018 the Chancellor announced the Spending Review.  Whilst this is 

expected to be revised in the near future this included additional funding for the Home Office 
(HO).  Within the settlement, £750m additional funding was provided for the police.  I am 
aware that a large portion of this will be used to fund the first tranche of 20,000 additional 
officers promised.  I am also aware that a portion of the £750m is required for central HO 
costs to administer the uplift in officers. Conversations between Finance Directors across the 
country have identified various outcomes depending on different assumptions on the grant 
funding.  Excluding the officer uplift these range from zero (efficiency savings expected to 
cover inflation) to 4% (inflation fully covered). 

 
3.2 In planning for 2020-21 the MTFS includes scenarios which consider the impact of a zero to 

3% increase in grant.  The funding difference is £1.757m (£0.585m each 1%).   Considering 
the need and risk I have asked for planning to be based on a 3% central grant settlement. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 5



  

Page 2 of 6 

4.0 COUNCIL TAX SCENARIOS 
 
4.1 The MTFS also shows various scenarios surrounding Council Tax.  Without any national 

guidelines I am considering a range of options surrounding the Band D council tax. This paper 
outlines my current preferences: 

 
 Option A – To increase council tax by £12 per annum (5.8%) 
 Option B – To increase council tax by £8.25 per annum (4%) 

 
4.2 The impact of a 1% increase in council tax is £0.545m 
 
5.0 TOTAL FUNDING SCENARIOS 
 
5.1 The table below shows the estimated funds I will have available under these options.  Due to 

the current uncertainty I have focused only on 2020-21 (all figures exclude police officer uplift 
grant as this is currently unknown but assumes a central grant increase of 3%); 

 
 

  
2019-20 
Budget 

2020-21 
Option A 
£12 incr. 

5.8% on the  
CTax  

2020-21 
Option B 

£8.25 incr. 
4% on the 

CTax  

Central Grant £58.559m £60.316m £60.316m 

Local Precept (CTax) £53.743m £57.576m £56.587m 

Localisation Grant £5.235m £5.235m £5.235m 

Collection Fund £0.550m £0.257m £0.257m 

Investment Income £0.200m £0.200m £0.200m 

Standard Funding available to  
commission services 

£118.287m £123.584m £122.595m 

Swindon PFI Specific Grant £2.067m £2.067m £2.067m 

Police Officer Pensions Grant £1.002m £1.002m £1.002m 

Special Policing Specific Grant £1.130m £1.130m £1.130m 

Total Funding £122.486m £127.783m £126.794m 

 
5.2 In addition to this I have central funding allocated to me to commission victims services and 

to support restorative justice.  No information has been provided on this figure, currently I am 
planning on this remaining stable at £0.827m. 

 
5.3 When I consider council tax increases I am focused on protecting local policing and the long 

term funding position.  To not increase council tax at this time will have considerable impacts 
on the future ability to commission policing and crime services.   

 
5.4 Wiltshire receives central funding of £87.79 per head of population under the current formula.  

This compares to a national average of £113.91 per head.  Being the 4th lowest centrally 
funded PCC per head of population increases my reliance on council tax. 

 
5.5 A £12 per annum increase in Council Tax will result in Wiltshire’s Band D council tax 

increasing from £206.27 to £218.27 (5.8% increase).  The table below shows that even with 
no increases in the rest of the South West, Wiltshire’s policing precept will still be lower than 
Gloucestershire and Dorset.  It is however likely that even with a £12 increase Wiltshire will 
remain the lowest in the region. 

 

Page 6



  

Page 3 of 6 

 2019-20 Band D CTax Wiltshire £8.25 
increase 

Wiltshire £12 
increase 

Gloucestershire £250.49   

Dorset £230.58   

Avon & Somerset £217.81   

Devon & Cornwall £212.28   

Wiltshire £206.27 £214.52 £218.27 

 
5.6 Other PCCs across the region are in the same position of uncertainty on capping rules and 

central grant allocations. At the time of writing, only Dorset PCC has begun public 
consultation, for an increase in council tax of £15 (6.5% increase).  

 
5.7 In calculating the funding available an increase in the council tax base has been included.  

The increase for Wiltshire Council is 1% and Swindon Borough Council 1.8%. The 
consolidated increase in the council tax base is 1.2%.  The funding available also includes 
the collection fund surplus; provisionally this has reduced (£0.550m in 2019-20, £0.257m in 

2020-21). 
 
5.8 Depending on the level of Council Tax I would allocate the funding as below; 
 

 2019-20 
Budget 

2020-21 
Option A 
 £12 incr. 

5.8% on the CTax  

2020-21 
Option B 

£8.25 incr.  
4% on the CTax  

OPCC (Direct Commissioning 
and Office Costs) 

£3.052m £3.189m £3.156m 

Capital £0.818m £1.483m £1.483m 

Chief Constable £114.417m £118.912m £117.956m 

Total £118.287m £123.584m £122.595m 

 
6.0 FUTURE FUNDING 
 
6.1  In recent years there has been a debate surrounding the policing funding formula.  Due to 

our low funding per head of population it is reasonable to expect that a change will benefit 
Wiltshire.  It was anticipated that the change would be implemented in 2017-18 however it 
was delayed.  It was then announced that this would occur in 2018-19 but no progress has 
been made.  Latest information suggests that 2021-22 will be the earliest that any change 
will be implemented. 

 
6.2  Considering the delays in a fair funding settlement and the impact council tax income will 

have on policing in Wiltshire now and in the future I will be proposing to increase the Band D 
Council Tax by £12 this year (Option A). 

 
6.3  The use of reserves is a high profile issue within the police service.  Within the MTFS I have 

revised my policy and set out clearly how I intend using them in the short to medium term.  
Due to the delayed policing settlement I may need to use reserves to fund unanticipated 
shortfalls in 2020-21, if this is the case savings will be required to close the gap in 2021-22. 
 

6.4  There still remains an expectation that the police improve efficiency, productivity and 
effectiveness.  Whilst I intend that Wiltshire will continue to improve its efficiency and 
effectiveness the ring fencing of police officer funding with the Uplift Grant will make this 
more difficult.  It is also difficult to identify savings in support services after 9 years of 
austerity.  

 
Page 7



  

Page 4 of 6 

7.0   THE CAPITAL FINANCING STRATEGY 
 
7.1  In 2019 I have reviewed my strategy surrounding capital financing.  With low levels of central 

grant (£0.407m p.a.) and reducing reserves the financing of essential ICT investment and 
making our facilities fit for modern day policing has become a concern. 

 
7.2  The 2018 Estates Strategy is being delivered with capital receipts being delivered and lower 

revenue estates costs.  I have however reviewed the operational and training facilities in 
Devizes and accept the Chief Constables recommendation that these need to be improved.  
This is becoming more essential with the increase in officers under the national Uplift 
programme.   
 

7.3  To finance continual investment in estates and ICT I must increase the revenue contributions 
to capital (either to directly fund short life assets or to service borrowing). The capital strategy 
requires the 2019-20 revenue contribution of £0.818m to rise to £2.7m by 2026-27.  In 2020-
21 I intend to make the first steps in closing this gap by increasing my revenue contribution to 
capital by £0.6m. 

 
8.0   OPCC DIRECT EXPENDITURE 
 
8.1  In 2019-20 I retained 2.4% of the funds available for office costs and commissioning of 

services. 
 
8.2   The most significant allocations in 2019-20 were: 

 Substance misuse services (£0.447m), jointly with Wiltshire Council and  Swindon 
Borough Council 

 Youth Offending teams (£0.224m), statutory contribution 

 Horizon Victims Services (£0.419m) 
 
8.3  In 2019-20 the OPCC budget was increased to recruit 2 additional commissioning posts and 

£0.465m additional commissioning resource to deliver the police and crime plan objectives 
including meeting responsibilities in criminal justice. This team has been operational since 
November 2019 and are developing commissioning options for me to consider for 2020-21. 

 
8.4  These options will build on the 2019-20 allocation and develop work across the three areas 

of reducing demand (early intervention), victims and vulnerability and reducing reoffending. 
This work is being developed with Wiltshire Police and local partnerships. They will support 
the challenges identified in the Force Management Statement and contribute to work across 
both local authorities and the criminal justice system.  

 
8.5   A commissioning budget will be presented to the PCP at the next full PCP March 2019. 
 
9.0 IMPACT ON CHIEF CONSTABLE’S BUDGET 
 
9.1  The MTFS reports the detail behind the cost pressures the Chief Constables budget is 

facing.  These include Inflation, Spinal Point Increases, etc.  The most significant cost 
pressures are reported below. 

 
9.2  The first requirement in the 2020-21 budget must be to close the pay increase gap.  In 2019-

20 the budget was set with a forecast pay award of 2%, the actual, nationally set award was 
2.5%.  This requires additional funding of £0.5m p.a.   
 

Page 8



  

Page 5 of 6 

9.3  The cost of implementing national police staff hand book changes on unsocial hours has also 
been higher than forecast (£3.3m rather than £2.5m) and needs resolving. This leads to an 
additional £0.800m requirement. 

 
9.4  Investment in Community Policing Teams remains a priority.  Whilst the national Uplift 

programme announced that Wiltshire will receive 49 new officers (out of the first 6,000) there 
is a need to improve management structures.  It is therefore proposed to increase Inspectors 
by 5 and Sergeants by 15 at a cost of £0.300m.  This will bring our management ratio’s more 
in line with those found in the neighbouring same size forces of Dorset and Gloucestershire. 
This is vital considering that Wiltshire has removed Chief Inspector and Chief Superintendent 
ranks. 
 

9.5  In 2020-21 the decision was made to insource ICT.  The successful partnership with 
Wiltshire Council (WC) was becoming increasingly challengingly due to national police 
security requirements a move to more central led police systems which the current 
infrastructure cannot support.  The year 1 additional cost will be £0.217m. 

 
10.0   SAVINGS PLANS 
 
10.1  The initial Chief Constables requirement is £120.002m.  Under my preferred Option A (a 

5.8% increase, with 3% central funding) I would allocate the Chief Constable £118.912m.  
This would lead to a savings target of £1.090m.  

 
10.2  The table below outlines the plan in the MTFS to deliver the required savings.  This has been 

produced in association with the Chief Constable’s Senior Leadership Team; 
 

Review of Crime Prevention Remove 2 posts £0.115m 

   

Review of Chief Officer Support Remove 3 posts £0.100m 

ICT changes Remove 1 post £0.057m 

Review of current budget  Reduce NI and Fuel budget £0.150m 

Inflationary Review Reduce Inflation Increases £0.332m 

Ops Support Review Remove 1 post, rank change £0.099m 

SWPPD review of Niche Lower cost contract £0.073m 

Reduce Pressures Allocation Reduce budget £0.100m 

Other Savings To be identified £0.064m 

Total  £1.090m 

 
10.3  The impact on staffing levels from the investment and savings is shown below; 
 

 Officers Staff PCSO 

Starting Position 975 962 131 

Crime Prevention Realignment +4 -4  

Crime Prevention Structure  -2  

Chief Officer Support -1 -2  

Professional Stds Inspector +1   

Public Protection Inspector +1   

Ops Support Inspector -1   

ANPR staff  +2  

FMS and People Support  +2  

ICT Insource  +33  

National Uplift Programme +49   

Total 1028 991 131 

Page 9



  

Page 6 of 6 

10.4  It is acknowledged that the funding planned may not be deliverable, either by a lower 
capping level or a reduced central grant.  In this instance the funding gap could increase by 
an additional £1m.  I have asked the Chief Constable to consider how he would close the 
gap if this was the case.  With Police Officers being ring fenced under the Uplift programme 
the majority of savings would have to come from police staff (including PCSOs).  It is 
therefore likely that if this was the case that there would be a further reduction in staff. 

 

11.0 RESERVES 
 
11.1  A complete review of reserves has taken place with the outcome disclosed in the MTFS.  

The value of the general reserve has been considered and I am advised that £3.090m (2.5% 
of the revenue budget) is acceptable. 

 
12.0    CONCLUSION  
 
12.1  This paper shows the panel my MTFS, reports how difficult it is to estimate the funding I have 

available (as central information is outstanding) and gives them my current thinking 
surrounding the 2020-21 precept.   I believe a £12 Band D increase per household per year 
is appropriate and it is my intention to consult the public on this. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



                                              

 

Police and Crime Panel   
Forward Work Plan  
Please note: this is a working document which is subject to change 
 

Date Location Provisional Agenda Items 

Thursday 16 
January 2020 
 
10am-1pm 

Devizes Corn Exchange 

 PCC Budget 2019/20 and MTFS 

 Services the PCC commissions - update 
 

Thursday 6 
February 
20120 
 
10am-1pm 

County Hall, Trowbridge 

 Formal consideration of PCC Precept proposal 

Thursday 19 
March 2020 
 
10am-1pm 

Monkton Park, Chippenham 

 Quarterly data (Q3)– Risk / Performance / Finance / Complaints  

 Member questions 

 Tri-Force – final update 

 Wiltshire Police IT Systems 
 

P
age 73

A
genda Item

 6



                                              

 

Thursday 4 
June 2020 
 
10am-1pm 

City Hall, Salisbury 

 Quarterly data (Q4)- Risk / Performance / Finance / Complaints 

 Member questions 
 

Thursday 3 
September 
2020 
 
10am-1pm 

Corn Exchange, Devizes 

 Quarterly data (Q1)- Risk / Performance / Finance / Complaints 

 Services the PCC commissions - update 

Thursday 10 
December 
2020 
 
10am-1pm 

Swindon Borough Council 
Offices 

 Quarterly data (Q2)- Risk / Performance / Finance / Complaints 

 Member questions 
 

 

 

P
age 74


	Agenda
	5 PCC Budget 2020/21 and MTFS
	16.01.20 MTFS - Panel

	6 Forward Work Plan

